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Members of Classes Ending in “1” and “6” Will
Hold Reunions on Campus June 4 and 5

Once every five years after grad-
uation, alumni of the University
have an opporunity to meet in re-
union with many of the members
of their own respective classes. Old

8 grads know they are always wel-

come to return to school and to
renew acquaintances with members
of the staff, but it is only on these
special occasions that they have
the privilege of assemblying with
a large number of those men and
women whom they knew best be-
cause they were classmates five,
ten, or perhaps twenty—five or more
years ago.

While commencement exercises
are still two months ahead, it is
not too soon to begin plans for that
important reunion. Classes sched-
uled to assemble this year are those
ending in the numbers “1” and “6,”
with the class of 1934 holding spe-
tial reunion on the occasion of the

N second anniversary of graduation.

There are many changes taking
place on the campus which should
prove interesting to those who have
ot had an opportunity to keep in
close contact with the University
during the last several years. In
some instances familiar landmarks
are disappearing, but all these
thanges are in the direction of a
progress which alumni will be
pleased to note. A special article
glse\vhere in this publication out-
lines something of the transforma-

| tions taking place under the cur—
 rent University building program.

Commencement Calendar

Speakers for the various events
of commencement week have not
been announced, but a tentative
talendar lists the highlights of the
brogram, which has been so ar-
fanged that all major events will
take place within a day and a half.

_— —

Thursday, June 4, will be Alumni
Day, with luncheons planned for
the various classes holding special
reunions. Baccalaureate services
will be held that afternoon in Me-
morial hall, followed by the annual
alumni tea given by President and
Mrs. McVey at Maxwell Place.

Of principal interest to alumni
will be the annual banquet to be
held Thursday night at the Lafay-
ette hotel, when Gov. A. B. Chand-
ler is expected to be the principal
speaker.

Commencement exercises will be
held at 10 o’clock Friday morning,
June 5, in the Alumni gymnasium.
After commencement, alumni, sen-

iors, and friends will attend a
luncheon at the University Com-
mons. Immediately following the
luncheon, the annual meeting of
the alumni association will be held
at the Commons.

Further information regarding
details of class reunions, together
with announcement of baccalaure-
ate and commencement speakers,
will be released when the program
has been completed. In the mean-—
time, all old grads, regardless of
whether or not they are members
of the classes holding special re-
unions, are urged to plan a trip
back to the University at com-
mencement time.

0& AMONG THOSE TO

MEET THIS YEAR ))Q

The foregoing is a photograph of the members of the class of '06 as they appeared on
the occasion of their last reunion in June of 1931.
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Rising among their veteran pred—
ecessors, three new buildings and a
central heating plant will soon put
new angles into the University sky-
line.

Greatest of the changes to be ef-
fected by the new building set-up
probably will be made by the erec-
tion of a Student Union building.
The selection of a site for this build—
ing has been a subject of consider-
able discussion since first plans for
the structure were announced.

Near the center of the campus a
quadrangle of buildings will be the
home of the College of Engineer—
ing. Historical Mechanical Hall,
built in 1892, will form one corner
of the quadrangle, while the Wendt
shops will make up the entire east
side.

Construction of a new law build-
ing will end almost fifty years of
service for the one in use at the
present time. The law building 1lo-
cation also is undetermined.

The central heating plant site not
only has been decided upon, but
actual work on the structure is ex-
pected to be started almost im-
mediately. This plant will be placed
on the opposite side of Limestone
street from the main campus, on a
lot adjoining the present Service
Department building, former loca—
tion of a looseleaf tobacco ware-
house. To this lot 3,600 tons of
coal necessary to heat the entire
University group for one year can
be hauled by a special track right
up to the coal bins.

Sudden impetus in the building
program became publicly known
several months ago when Col. James
Graham, dean of the College of
Engineering, made a trip to Wash—
ington' for a federal grant and a
Public Works Administration loan.
Dean Graham’s efforts resulted in
the approval of a $165,000 grant and
a $600,000 loan, and the Student
Union building dream was an-
nounced, as a reality.

This announcement followed sev-
eral years work by such student
organizations as Omicron Delta
Kappa, honorary campus leader—
ship fraternity, which sponsored the
selling of tags at football games.
The surplus funds from the Wed-
nesday dances went into the Stu-
dent Union fund. Pictures of Stu-
dent TUnion buildings in other
schools were shown at the Univer—
sity Commons, editorial opinion ap-
peared in the Kernel, and at last
concerted effort won out.

Since the approval of the loan
and grant, the discussion of the
Student Union building location has
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attracted no small interest and de-
bate. A position in the right front
of the Administration building fac-
ing Limestone and near the flag-
pole was considered. Some Uni-
versity officials thought such a
building should be nearer the exact
center of the campus and suggested
the space in front of the library.
Others favored the site next to the
Old Patterson residence, now the
Woman’s building. Locations near
McVey hall, near Memorial hall,
and on the tennis courts also were
suggested. Official announcement
as to the most likely location has
been withheld.

No swimming pool is in prospect
for the new building. Although se-
riously considered by University
officials, plans for a pool have been
abandoned because they declared it
would be either too expensive or
too small and unsanitary. Other
schools’ experiences with indoor
pools were taken into account in
arriving at the decision. Just what
the water-minded group on the
campus will be able to do in the fu-
ture is at present uncertain. How-—
ever, Student Union building pros—
pects were just as uncertain a year
ago.

Present plans call for the building
to include a dance floor, the Com-
mons, the Campus Book store, and

- the post office. The “social center”

of the campus also is expected to
move to the new location.

Engineering building plans are
being worked out, and tearing down
of the old section of Mechanical
hall known as “Dicker hall” has
been completed in preparation for
the new building. However, the
front section, ivy-covered Mechan-
jcal hall, will remain standing.

With the newest materials avail-
able, the new drawing room to be
built as a second story to the
Wendt shops will have one long
glass window extending from floor
to ceiling for the entire length of
the building on the east side. This
innovation in class room construc-
tion will provide abundant light.

The Wendt shops on the east of
Mechanical hall on the southwest
corner outline roughly a quad-
rangle which will be completed with
the new buildings. Thus a cramped
College of Engineering will soon
have room enough for a long, sat-
isfying stretch.

Dean F. Paul Anderson, late head
of the College of Engineering, came
here in 1891 and had charge of the
construction of Mechanical hall. He
missed by less than three years see-
ing an extension of the college for

University Launches Building Program

which he had worked during a pe-
riod of forty years.

“Dean of Heat” Dickerson, the
man, in charge of the present heat-
ing plant, is living these days in an-
ticipation of the new heating plant,
According to Maury Crutcher, su-
perintendent of buildings ang
grounds, the central system wil
eliminate twenty-five heating plants,
forty—four boilers, twenty-two stok-
ers and twenty firemen along with
an array of wheelbarrows and ash-
cans.

All the operations incident to
heating will be removed to the
west side of Limestone, leaving the
atmosphere behind much cleaner,
Lower heating costs will follow, too.
Moving the old plants will make
more room for class rooms. Mr,
Crutcher states that besides all
these advantages the heating plant
will pay for itself in a few years:

With the tearing down of the old
heating plant chimney back of the
Administrotion building goes a
landmark that perhaps won’t pass
so easily from alumni memory.
And with the new structure rising
about the campus come new an-
gles that will play havoc with the
alumni conception of the Univer-
sity skyline.

News of the
Classes

1881
Merry Lewis Pence, B. S. '81, is
professor emeritus of the Univer-
sity, having retired after many
years as professor of physics here.
Professor Pence resides at 535
Maxwelton Court, Lexington.
1886
Dr. Thomas Hunt Morgan, B. S.
86, M. S. ’88, is a member of the
staff of the Pasadena Institute of
Technology at Pasadena, Calif. Dr.
Morgan, an outstanding worker in
the field of science, was awarded
the Nobel prize for biological ré-
search in 1933.

1896

Widely known engineer and active
supporter of the University, J. Ir-
vine Lyle, B. M. E. '96, is executive
vice-president and treasurer of the
Carrier Engineering corporation of
Newark, N. J. His home address 1
1200 West Seventh street, Plain-
field, N. J.
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1896
Dr. Harry Adolph Davidson, B. C.
E. 96, is a practicing physician
with offices at 815 Francis building,
Louisviile. He resides at 1601 Wind-
sor Place, Louisville,
1901
Henry Bewlay, B. M. E. ’01, is
chief engineer with the Imperial
Electric company at Akron, Ohio.
His residence is 736 Evergreen
Drive, Akron.

* %* *

1906
In the government service since
a short time after his graduation,
Hareld Edwin Stevens, B. S. '06, is
senior pathologist in the TUnited
states department of agriculture
pureau at Orlando, Fla. His work
is largely concerned with the study
of diseases of the citrus and efforts
to control those diseases as spon-
sored by the agriculture depart-
ment.

Alexander Thornton Lewis, B. M.
E '06, is engaged in heating and
ventilating engineering at South
Orange, N. J. His home address is
156 Irving avenue, South Orange.

* K%

1911

Mining engineer in several sec—
tions of the United States and
Mexico after leaving the University;
Paul Francis, B. E. M. ’l1, is now a
coal mine operator at La Follette,
Tenn. His home address is Tennes—
see avenue, La Follette.

1916

Marcus Jerome Clarke, B. S. ’16,
is superintendent of city schools at
Ely, Nevada. Mr. Clarke was for-
merly instructor in the high school
at Winchester, Ky., and later prin-
tipal of the high school at Frank-
fort.

Sales of Delco lighting plants and
guipment and similar work in the
field of electrical refrigeration have
occupied the time of Edward Albert
Blackburn, B.S. ’16, since his grad-
uation from the University. Mr.
Blackburn is now in charge of
Frigidaire sales in Texas, with of-
fices at 3104 Main street, Houston.

Antheny Burnam Combs, LL. B.
16, is practicing attorney at Pres-
Tpnburg, Ky., where he has been
fnce leaving schocl here. Mr.
Combs reczived his A. B. degree
om the University of Tennessee
iefore enrolling in the University
College of Law.

1921
The manager of the Atlanta, Ga.,
pfﬁce of the Baily Meter company
5 Marshail J. McWhorter, B. M. E.
!, who. has been affiliated with
tha@ company since completing his
figineering work at the University.
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PLEASANT SCENE TO REMAIN UNCHANGED

; A_lthough many changes are being made in the university campus under the present
building program, this familiar front section of historic Mechanical Hall will be left
standing, and the beautiful view shown here will continue to greet alumni upon their re-

turn for reunions.

Mr. McWhorter resides at 39 Fair—
haven Circle, Atlanta.

Field agent for the University de-
partment of extension one year aft-
er his graduation, and later a mem-
ber of the staff of the Associated
Press at Louisville, Herndon J. Ev-
ans, A. B. 21, is now editor and
publisher of the Pinville Sun, Pine-
ville, Ky. Mr. Evans has been head
of the Pineville newspaper since
1923.

1926

Woodson Dennie Scott, A. B. 26,
LL. B. 27, is a member of the law
firm of Lord, Day and Lord at 25
Broadway, New York City. His
home addrsss is 510 West 110th
street, New York.

Law and banking have been the
principal interests of XKenneth
Herndon Tuggle, A. B. '26, since his
graduation from school here. Mr.
Tuggle, is now president of the
Union National Bank at Barbour-
ville, Ky.

1931
Louise Miller Tilten, A. B. '31, is
a member of the faculty of the Jef-
ferson Davis School in Lexington.
Her home addrsss is 837 Melrose
avenue, Lexington.

Mrs. Jul’an T. Lefler (Hester
Louise Greene) A. B. '31, is librar-
ian and instructor in English at
Lone Jack high school, Four Mile,
Ky. Her address is Box 235, Pine-
ville.

Charles Howard Riednger, LL. B.
31, is county attorney of Lewis
county, with offices at Vanceburg.

1934

Miss Ethel Murphy Traugott, A.
B. ‘34, is principal of a rural school
in Bracken county, near Brooks—
ville, Ky.

Eugene Chafin Royse, LL. B. '34,
is practicing attornsy at Maysville,
Ky.

Dorothy Eloise Clifton, A. B. ’34,
is studying at the Merrill-Palmer
School at Detroit, Mich., where she
was awarded a fellowship in psy-
chology. Miss Clifton received her
M. A. degree in psychology here in
1935.

1922

For several years an active work-
er in the engineering field, W. G.
Kefauver, B. S. 22, is now super-
visor of group division for the Met-
repolitan Life Insurance company
with offices at Cincinnati. Mr. Ke-
fauver went to the General Electric
company at Schnectady, N. Y., aft-
er leaving the University, and later
was transferred to a position as
district lighting specialist for that
company at Cincinnati, Ohio. He
has been in his present work since
1929. Mr. Kefauver’s residence is
1310 Park Ridge Place, Cincinnati.

1923

Mrs. E. V. Avant (Opal Cox), B.
S. 23, is home economics teacher
at Mayfield high school, Mayfield,
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Ky. Her home address is 624 South
Seventh street, Mayfield.

Harold Victor Tempel, B. S. ’23,
is principal and instructor in vo-
cational agriculture at Henry Clay
high school, Shelbyville, Ky. Mr.
Tempel has done graduate work at
the University and at Cornell Uni-
versity, and is a member of the
Kentucky Education Association,
the National Education Association,
and the American Legion. His home
address is rural route 3, Shelbyville.

1924

Mrs. Edd R. Gregg (Mary Peter-
son) B. S. 24, is director of home
service department for the Arctic
Ice company at Louisville. She was
married to Mr. Gregg in August of
1930. Mr. Gregg is a former student
of the University in the class of
1922. After leaving school he went
to Europe to study architecture,
and returned to Louisville to work
for the T. J. Nolan architect firm,
where he became an associate in
1927. Mr. and Mrs. Gregg have
traveled in Europe since their mar—
riage, and both are actively inter—
ested in affairs of the University,
attending all home football games.
Their home address is 180 Cerscent
avenue, Louisville.

1925
Bernard Wright Southgate, Jr.,
A. B. ’25, is employed in the invest—
ment department of the Western
and Southern Life Insurance com-
pany, with offices at Fourth and
Broadway, Cincinnati, Ohio. His
residence is 116 East Nineteenth
street, Cincinnati.
1929
Richard Clayton Smoot, LL. B.
29, is an attorney at Ashland, Ky.,
where he is a member of the Boyd
County Bar association, the Ash—
land Lodge No. 257, I. O. O. F., and
the Oakview Council No. 70, J. O.
U. A. M. His home address is 209
Mead apartments, Ashland.
1927
A practicing attorney and mem-
ber of the East Texas College of
Law, Beaumont, Texas, Charles
Frederick Heidrick, Jr., A. B. ’27, is
a member of the firm of Heidrick
ar}d Tucker. Mr. Heidrick received
his LL. B. degree from Harvard
Law School in June of 1930, and
has been a member of the Texas
law firm since that time. His home
address is 2150 Avenue A., Beau-—
mont, Texas.

George C. Downing, A. B. 1217218
doing clerical work in the United
States government service. Mr.
Downing was principal of the
Frankfort, Ky., high school from
1898 until 1919, at which time he
entered the government service.
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His home address is 3437 Mt. Pleas-
ant street, N. W., Washington, D. C.

Mrs. S. A. Porter (Elizabeth
Aaron), B. S. 27, is home demon-
stration agent of Campbell coun-
ty, Ky. She is a member of Phi
Upsilon Omicron, honorary home
economics fraternity, and Kappa
Delta Pi, honorary education fra-
ternity. Her home address is Alex-
andria, Ky.

George Edward Stone, A. B. 27,
is a pharmacist employed by the
S. B. Hunt company at Mayfield,
Ky. Mr. Stone did graduate work
at the University one semester aft-
er receiving his A. B. degree, and
later did special work in pharmacy,
passing an examination in phar-
macy in 1928, and has been em-
ployed by the Mayfield company
since that time. He is a member
of the Mayfield junior chamber of
commerce, the Masonic order, and
the F. and A. M. Milburn Lodge
927. His home address is Lowe
Apartments, No. F., Mayfield.

1928

Peter D. Giachini, LL. B. 31, is
attorney at 134 North La Salle
street, Chicago. After leaving the
University law school, Mr. Giachini
did graduate work at the Univer-
sity of Illinois, and has been prac-
ticing law since that time. His res-
idence is 422 Lake street, Oak Park,
111,

1928

John D. Nantz, B. S. ’28, is man-
ager of the medicinal laboratories
of the National Aniline and Chem-
ical company at Buffalo, N. Y. He
is a member of the American
Chemical Society, the Society of
American Bacteriologists, and the
alumni chapter of Alpha Chi Sig-
ma, chemical fraternity, at Buffalo.
His residence is 155 Knowlton av-
enue, Kenmore, N. Y.

A former station manager for the
Louisville Courier-Journal at Lex—
ington, Wilzam Alfred Kirkpatrick,
A. B. 28, is now manager for that
newspapsr and for the Louisville
Times at Danville, Ky. He resides
at 205 North First street, Danville.

1930

David H. Clift, B. S. ’30, is ref-
erence assistant of the New York
Public Library, 476 Fifth -Avenue,
New York City. He is a member of
the New York Library club, and the
author of a’' publication entitled
“The Hornet Bible,” issued by the
New York library in June of 1935.
Mr. CIlift, who received his B. S.
degree in Library Service at Co-
lumbia University in 1931, resides
at 33 Washington Square, West,
New York.

Miss Elizabeth Ercshell, A. B., 30,
is elementary teacher at Newport,

Ky., where she has been employeq
since her graduation from the Uni-
versity. Her home address is 225
East Sixth street, Newport.

Miss Nancy Adrienne Mason, A,
B. ’30, is history teacher at Sonora
high school, Sonora, Ky. Miss Ma-
son was formerly teacher in Cum-
berland high school, Praise, Ky,
and later at Louisville and Milton,
Ky., before going to the Sonora
school.

1933
Talmage Huff, A. B. 33, is prin-
cipal of the Cumberland Public
Schools at Cumberland, Ky. Mr.
Huff was formerly principal of the
junior high school at Harlan, Ky,
1935
“The Transylvania Coleny” is the
title of a book recently coming
from the pen of William Stewart
Leslie, M. A. '27, Ph. D. '35, profes-
sor of history and social science at
Kentucky Wesleyan -college, Win-
chester, Ky. Professor Leslie, whose
book is being published by the
Samuel R. Guard company at
Spencer, Ind., is a graduate of the
University of Mississippi. His son,
William Stewart Leslie, Jr., received
his M. A. degree here in 1934, and
is now doing graduate study at the
Fletcher School of Law and Diplo-
macy, Boston, Mass.

STATEMENT OF THE OWNERSHIP,
MANAGEMENT, CIRCULATION, ETC.,
REQUIRED BY THE ACT OF CON-
GRESS OF AUGUST 24, 1912,

Of Kentucky Alumnus, published quarter-
ly, at Lexington, Ky., for October 1, 1935,
State of Kentucky, County of Fayette.

Before me, a Notary Public, in and for
the State and county aforesaid, person-
ally appeared R. K. Salyers, who, having
been duly sworn according to law, deposes
and says that he is the editor of the Ken-
tucky Alumnus and that the following is,
to the best of his knowledge and belief, &
true statement of the ownership, man-
agement, etc., of the aforesaid publication
for the date shown in the above caption,
required by the Act of August 24, 1912,
embodied in section 411, Postal Laws and
Regulations, to wit:

1. That the names and addresses of the
publisher, editor, managing editor and
business managers are:

Publisher, Alumni Association, U. of
K., Lexington, Ky.; Editor, R. K. sal-
yers, Lexington, Ky.; Managing detor.
R. K. Salyers, Lexington, Ky.; Business
Manager, Vivian Nash, Lexington, Ky.
2. That the owner is Alumni Assocla-

tion, University of Kentucky, Lexington
(non-stock corporation). Officers are Keen
Johnson, President; Mrs. David Phelps,
Vice-President; R. K. Salyers, Secretary.
James Shropshire, Treasurer.

3. That the known bondholders, mort-
gagees and other security holders o\vmng1
or holding 1 per cent or more of tota
amount of bonds, mortgages, or other se-
curities are: None.

R. K. SALYERS, Editor.
Sworn to and subscribed before me this
25th day of September, 1935.

JANE J. NICHOLS.

(My commission expires July 17, 1939.)




